

## final report

Project code:A.COP.0033Prepared by:ProAND Associates PtyDate submitted:August 2006

PUBLISHED BY Meat & Livestock Australia Limited Locked Bag 991 NORTH SYDNEY NSW 2059

# Rendering cost model instruction manual

Meat & Livestock Australia acknowledges the matching funds provided by the Australian Government and contributions from the Australian Meat Processor Corporation to support the research and development detailed in this publication.

This publication is published by Meat & Livestock Australia Limited ABN 39 081 678 364 (MLA). Care is taken to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this publication. However MLA cannot accept responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information or opinions contained in the publication. You should make your own enquiries before making decisions concerning your interests. Reproduction in whole or in part of this publication is prohibited without prior written consent of MLA.

## Contents

		Page
1	Rendering model	3
2	Model operating parameters	3
3	Structure of the model	5
4	Data entry	6
4.1	Financial and operating cost forms – 1	6
4.1.1	Raw material costs	6
4.1.2	Plant labour cost	6
4.1.3	Finance and overhead costs	7
4.1.4	Service costs	7
4.1.5 4.2	Product revenues Plant and equipment forms - 2	8 8
4.2.1	Rendering method	8
4.2.2	Hot water recovery	8
4.2.3 4.3	Blood processing Raw material forms - 4	8 9
4.3.1	Kill data	9
4.3.2	Rendering RM input	9
4.3.3	Abattoir RM yields	9
4.3.4	Rendering yields	10
4.3.5 4.4	Material shipped Beef yield calculator – 3	10 11
4.4.1	Beef kill and bone	11
4.4.2	Kill floor raw material	12
4.4.3	Main form	12

## 1 Rendering model

The rendering cost model is designed to allow the standardisation of rendering KPI's for the purpose of allowing rendering operations to identify performance over time and identify where actions may be taken to reduce costs and increase profitability.

Please note:- The screen pictures used in this user guide do not reflect the data of any rendering operation and will not give typical outputs when entered in the model.

### 2 Model operating parameters

• The model has been built on Microsoft Excel XP but will also run on Excel 2000, the model has not been tested on earlier versions of Excel and is

very unlikely to run on Excel 95.

• The model makes extensive use of Excel Macro's and Visual Basic codes and routines. To allow the model to run correctly the security levels in Excel need to be set to the appropriate level.

The Microsoft Excel setup of this can be found in the Excel menu under "Tools >, Options" with the "Security" tab selected. On this page there is a button titled "Macro Security" this needs to be selected to bring up the options for how macros are handled when opening Excel spreadsheets that run macros

ptions						? 🗙
Ves	Celculation	Edit Ge	Ianar	Transition	Custom Lis	ts Chart
Color	International	Save.	6	var Chedling	Spelling	Security
He manat	ion settings for this	workbrook -				
Password	ts gen				1	Advanced
Cia charine	and the set of the set	alkard.				
Pasta and	Second and the second					
C assessed to	on Block by				_	
Clagar-	any recommended					
Qigital S	gnetures					
Privacy opt	ione .					
Beno	e personal informa	ton from file :	ropert	es on save		
Mago seca	rita					
Adust the	e security level for f	les that mah	contai	n macra vinue	Sard Lun	to the state
specify na	mes of trusted was	ro developen	ŧ.		1	o geminitere
					_	-
					OK	Cancel

Security		2 🛛
Security Level	Inusted Publishers	
O yery High. C to run. All of	inly macros installed in their signed and unsign	trusted locations will be allowed ed macros are disabled.
O tilgh. Only a run-Unsigne	gned mecros from tru duracros are autonat	sted sources will be allowed to scally disabled.
<ul> <li>Medium, You mecros.</li> <li>Low protined unsafe macrosoftware ins you open.</li> </ul>	can choose whether ommended). You are os. Use this setting or talled, or you have ch	or not to run potentially unaafe not protected from potentially dy if you have virus econning ecked the safety of all documents
Virus scanner(s) ir	stalled.	OK Cancel

The selection of 'Medium" will allow you to choose to run the macros in the model when opening the file.

"High" or "Very High" will open the model but will disable macros preventing almost all model functions and operations.

• Opening the model (after accepting the operation of the macros in the model) the user is presented with a single page. This shows the buttons for opening the data entry form (on the left side of the screen) as well as the benchmark outputs. (this is shown in figure 1 below)

Nations to Access Talls Entry Parms	Date of Benchmark Benchmark Period (Neeks)	34953		Benchmark Model Inputs Tormes Raw Material Processed	Results For Benefallark Period 138,152	Tonnes Per Bry 6.90%
or the Model		-		Tormen Output Illatorial - Actual Shipped	ActualOutput	
	Ingul / Output Benchmarks	Calculated		Meet Meat	31.4	6.75
	SCast / Tanne Raw Italetal	8100.00		Tallare	34.8	1.78
Delive / Uplate	8 Revenue / Tonne Raw Material	818,961.87		Shood Mean	3.3	0.11
Operating Cost	Input. Output Bonchmarks	Calculated Output	ActualOutput	Long	71.3	3.66
other and seems	\$ Revenue/Tonne Output	\$53,009,04	\$55,179.70	Keld on Shipped Material	51.54%	
	Raw Meterial Cost / Tonne Output	\$101.85	\$194.03	Tonnee Output Waterial - Calculated	Calculated Output	
	Operations Senchmarks		-	Meat Meat	32.62	6.09
Define / Update	Processing Sall Only Labour Bours	Calculated Output	ActualOutput	Talave	33.96	6.79
fiant & Doubleent	Tennes Output / Manhour	0.098	0.094	Blood literal	2.56	0.43
	Lab Casi / Tenne Dulput	\$298.27	\$756.04	Lotet	74.3	3.57
				Vield on Calculated Dubput	\$1.81%	
	Total Plant Staff Labour Hours					
Beet Vield	Tonnee Output / Manhour	0.083	0.076	Total processing Costs	Calculated Dutput	ActualOutput
Calculator	Lab Cost / Kg HDVV	59.8993		Total Cost (NG #DW	50.5243	
_	Lab Cost / Tonne Output	\$791.00	\$303.84	Total Cost / Tonne Output	\$1,000.00	\$1,764.4
	Personal Measures			Protosenantial Costs		
Hite Have Balanad	RAM / KOS HONE	50.9555		Environmental Casts / 62 HDW	50.0004	
mout	RAM / Yomre Output	\$6.0.7.00	\$646.19	Environmental / Tanne Dutaut	\$2.47	12.1
	Indeneet & Depit WD HDW	\$4.74				
	Interest & Depr / Tome: Output	\$5×7.40	5546.13	Energy Used		
	and a second second second second		A Second second	Gilbrergy Exed /KG #GW	0.0004	
Int Data Nord and	freight Coats			2) Energy Used per Tossie Gulpul	1.326	1.37
rora	Freight / KG HOW	50.0000		Energy Cost Wg HDW	50.4124	
	Freight / Tenne Output	50.00	\$40.340	Energy Coat / Tome Output	\$142.14	\$378.4
				Not Weter Energy Recovered, My / KG HEW	8.12415	

Figure 1 - Output page of the model showing KPI Results

- The model is basically broken down into three areas of input and calculation and each of these is associated with a number of pages on three entry forms.
  - Financial inputs
  - o Plant set up arrangements
  - o Raw material information

There is only one results page (figure 1 shown above), no other parts of the model need to be accessed for normal use.

- To reduce the amount of data entry required previously entered data (i.e. already in the model) is retrieved when a form is reopened, care needs to be taken to ensure that retrieved data is accurate as previously incorrect data (if entered) is also displayed and this will perpetuate errorE
- Options
   Processing
   Spaling
   Security

   View
   Colorison
   Edit
   Exercise
   Custominities
   Chart

   Calculation
   @ gutomatic
   O tigenual
   Calculation
   Calculation
- The calculation of blood meal output requires the use of a circular

reference in the calculation (i.e. the output of the calculation is also an input for the equation). The default installation of Microsoft Excel is to highlight this (circular reference) as a potential error in the formula.

To overcome this Excel needs to have iterations turned on. This is achieved by going to the menu bar and selecting "Tools > Options" and selecting the "Calculation" Tab. Select the Checkbox for "Iterations" the standard setting of 100 / 0.001 iterations are ok for the model to function correctly.

• Throughout the model volumes of material are processed as Kilograms although for the purposes of results these are converted to Tonnes of material.

## 3 Structure of the model

The model has been designed with a view to the operations of different rendering plants and as such it has needed to reflect the different operators and the different types of plant and methods of recording activity.

While benchmarking comparisons are better made over longer time periods (preferably 12 months to iron out fluctiations in processing, seasonal factors, plant maintenance and breakdown etc) the model is designed to show results over a shorter time period. This is achieved by using two classes of data.

- Operational data such as abattoir kill, bought in raw material, products sold etc may be entered for any time period as long as the time period is defined on the data entry form and the data is all for the same period.
- Plant related data is entered on the basis of annual operations and include items such as interest and depreciation, staff costs, repairs and maintenance etc. These annual cost are then adjusted, in the model, to align with the time period defined for the operational data.

Data entered into the data entry forms is not written to the model until the "OK" or "Data Entry" buttons are clicked, however once this is done previously entered data will be overwritten. Each time a form is opened the last entered data (now in the model) is displayed on the forms.

In all cases clicking the "Cancel" button will close the form, this action will not enter data into the model.

Changes to the model data will only be permanently saved by using the conventional "File" "Save" buttons on the Excel toolbar(Results and discussion) - Section

## 4 Data entry

4.1 Financial and operating cost forms – 1

This form comprises five pages to define the costs and revenues of the business:

#### 4.1.1 Raw material costs

"Raw Material" allows the user to define the costs of raw material entering the process plant in two ways:

 For a meat processor the model will calculate the raw material outcomes on the basis of user defined kill and yields. The model allows this raw material to be valued by the rendering plant as cost input.

Valuation of hattoir Hatorial	MAR	745	Done	Sect
5/¥0	10.2	\$0.3	86.5	80.1
ost of Outside National \$/Kg	жарт	Fat	low.	Hood
	80.2	80.2	86.0	-90.0

 For a service renderer or a meat processing plant that processes outside material this may be valued at a different actual cost. The model allows for two pricing arrangements to be run independently.

Clicking on the "Clear Data" will clear the form of any data in the textboxes, however the cost data will only be deleted from the model when the "OK/Enter Button" is clicked. Closing ("Cancel) and then reopening the form will reload the data from the model.

The "Enter Data" will enter the data into the model but leave the form open for

further use. Comment:

Some meat processing plants do not in the normal course of operations value raw material sent to rendering from killing and/or boning operations for a variety of reasons. In the operation of the model this will not significantly affect outcomes other than to distort input cost measures and the notional value of profit from the business unit. Other volume based measures

remain unaffected and provide adequate input measures of value and performance.

4.1.2 Plant labour cost

"Labour Costs"

The labour costs associated with rendering are input into the model on the basis of annual cost. The annual costs of each employee is noted as the salary/wage cost paid to the employee without labour employer on-costs such as superannuation and holiday pay etc. These on-costs incurred in the employment of staff are noted.

ave Haberial Lab	our Costs   Financ	e & Operations   Se	rvices Costs   Revenues
Annual Wage Costs	No PTE Staff	Annual Salary / Wages	Labour On Costs %
arager	1	\$65,000.00	28
pervisor	2	\$55,000.00	32
epertment staff		\$42,000.00	38
rgineers	2	\$52,000.00	38
flice start?	2	\$35,000.00	35
ter .	1	\$22,000.00	35

Finance and overhead costs

Input of the annual overhead costs or running the rendering operations are broken into three areas:

- Finance and Depreciation This is split into the interest paid on the capital financing of the plant and the ongoing depreciation.
- Repairs and Maintenance this is entered as materials and labour and is in some respects an arbitrary input in that depending on the operation of the plant this will have been separately recorded. In some instances however by the use of contractors etc R&M may only be recorded as a single line item.

tatorial   Labo	ar Costs - Finance &	Operations Servi	ces Costs   Revenues
Finance	Arroyal Cost S	Repairs and Haintenance	Arroad Cent &
epression	9520.000	Matartale	\$122,000
3 darast	\$501.000	Labour	\$150,000
Experien	Annual Cost 8		
armanables.	\$413,000		Note: These are
the	8228.080		Annual Costs
www.com	8400.000		

This may be entered into the model either by an arbitrary split or as a single item.

Depending on the age of a plant the interest and depreciation or the repairs and maintenance may seem high however often these items tend to offset one another in that a new plant may have high interest and depreciation whereas an older plant that has little capital expense balances this with high maintenance costs.

- Other costs have been broken into Transport costs, consumables (bags, wrapping etc) and a remainder item in other
- 4.1.4 Service costs
- Services costs may be entered in two ways, depending on how data is collected from the plant, however, in each case the data needs to match the period of review.
- Information may be entered on the basis of the supply arrangement with the services supply company and the volume of units recorded as used.



The Supply Charge is to be entered as an

annual cost and this is then recalculated to match the Period of Review. The quantity used is to match the period of review and the model will use the information to calculate the total costs for the review period.

• The alternative is to enter the costs for the period as received by the company and ignore the unit supply arrangements. To use this enter the total cost for the period and select the "Use Period Cost" box. If the box is ticked the unit costs will not be used and there is no need to remove the data from the model.

However if there is not a use for a line item (say nil coal use) then the data in the boxes must be cleared to prevent it being used in calculations.

#### 4.1.5 Product revenues

These are entered for the period under review and therefore need to match the actual volumes shipped entered on the "Raw Material Input Forms".

#### 4.2 Plant and equipment forms - 2

4.2.1 Rendering method

The model is based on the use of up to three commonly used rendering systems and allows for one or all of the systems to be used. The model provides for the allocation on a percentage basis for raw material to be allocated to each of the systems. At

Wicrosoft Excel	<b>X</b>
You Have Not Selected a Ren	dening Process
OK )	
	_

least one rendering system must be selected for use for the model to accept the data on the form. If a rendering method is not selected then a

warning dialogue box will appear on screen. Clicking on "OK" will close the box and return the user to the form to make a selection. None of the data on the form will have been entered in the model. If a checkbox is

not selected then the process is not selected for inclusion in the models calculations and hence it is not necessary to remove the data from the form to prevent it from being used in the model.

#### 4.2.2 Hot water recovery

The model calculates the energy saving where this is used in a meat processing plant on the basis of the parameters entered. The default in the model is for the saving to be calculated. If a hot water recovery system is not installed then the efficiency needs to be reduced to zero to negate any included savings.

#### 4.2.3 Blood processing

The model provides for blood drying to be carried out either in a batch cooker or through a ring drier. The essential difference for the model is in accounting for solids losses in the ring drying operation. The moisture content of the finished meal and the amount of tramp water (plant added water) in the raw blood are also variables that are adjustable in the model

en Haberial   La	rbour Cents   Heaters	& Operations   Services Casts Revenue	•
Rendering F	toduct Revenues of of Financials		
	Point Heal	4246.000	
	Talipo	6132,000	
	Bitrat? Meal	-	
	Oter	- 40	

	and the second se			
Equipment and Opera Parameters	ung :		Casacty	rafe.
Dry Continuous   Low	Temp Batch	faier Capacita	11.500.4	88 <sup>m</sup>
		mint Hater Recovery		
	Capacity Kg/fr	Antoent Water Terrer	72.	DepC
Key Nateral In	7504	Discharge Water Terip	68.	DegC
Product N		Contereste	28	Depc
Calore yo	12080	1 Minarco	81.00%	
Evaporator	15080			
	197112	- Nerviewag Method and	Mecener-	
Diver30	19080	Fee: Pieter	ant af Ras al Process	
Note: Where more	than one piece of	Dry Cardruma (	100	÷.
equipment is installed	to carry out a function	198 E	100	÷.
totaled b	fors entry	SHAD IT	34	2
OK / Drive Debs	Bool Processo Black Drying in Drier Masker Cort	Parameters Eng gr Solders Ang	penet in [ phining ]	3. 4

#### 4.3 Raw material forms

The forms for entering data directly related to the processing of material are grouped on five pages of the form that is presented when the "Define Raw Material Input" is selected.

#### 4.3.1 Kill data

The "Kill Data" page of the form provides for the input of data relating to the kill of the meat processor for the review period. The period of the review of costs is also defined on this page and can be entered in either days or weeks. The model must know which time frame it is dealing with which is activated by selecting one of the buttons on the form. Selecting the "Enter Kill Data" will enter the kill data on the form into the model and provide the output on the "Rendering RM Input" page. This will not close the form, however it should be noted that when the data is entered it will overwrite data previously entered

	Amongor HOSCW	No of Stack Processed		
Beef	===	1,000.00	Roview Time Ported	
-	15.00	295.00	Rolling's or Sports	- and the second
Culture			Day's Processing Works Processing	
Landbo		-	Days per working work	1
boots		-		Loter Kill Data
0ther				-
				Our MILEDetr.

in the model. Beef kill data only may also be entered by the use of the sub form "Beef Yield

Calculator" described in section 4.4.

#### 4.3.2 Rendering RM input

This page allows for the entry of raw material volumes that are not the result of the regular kill at the meat plant, i.e. outside raw material. The amount of raw material needs to be entered in Kilograms. The information on the total raw material processed line will not be updated until the "OK" button has been selected. The model recognises the possibility of different yields for meat and tallow for outside materials and allows for these yields to be entered on this form.

	HAN	fiet	Bons.	filood
Abathoir Rendering Raw Haterial	90,490.0	30,544.3	58,879.8	16,028.0
Outside Haterial (Rg) (Dwie)	1	[	1.0	-
Total Raw Material Processed (Kg)	50,499	18,544	50,670	16,020
Outside Rendering B	Raturial Vicitia (*	R04)		
Heat Heal	12.81.5			
Tallow	21.00			

#### 4.3.3 Abattoir RM yields

The "Abattoir RM Yields" form allows for user input to determine the amounts of raw material going to rendering on the basis of the kill level input on the "Abattoir Kill Data" page.

Using the "Clear All Data" button will clear existing yield information from the form. The information is not removed from the model until the "OK" button is selected. If the data is deleted by mistake select "Cancel" to close the form and then reopen the form. This will reload the data from the model.

Species	Vield Data				Bane		shot	
haat	2.0		1.0	2	2146	4	1.736	6
naer	3.00		140	6	38.08	*	1.00	6
ates	35.00				12.00		8.00	
-	31.00		30.00		100		7.81	
ante	29.00	14	20.00		12.01		7.60	6
initi	8.00		1.446		3,08		1.00	64 C
	8.00	30	1.000	4	1000	2	0.00	18
Note I Percenta	Enter Weldy o age of Averag	f Rande pi Asiais	ring Base M al Hot: Dress	eterial e ed Sitan	tand des	# ABD	eta 1	nter Data

without any detrimental effect on the model. The data from the "Beef Yield Calculator" will input data into this form and can provide a guide for raw material yields however, it is the information from this form that when combined with the "Kill Data" calculates the amount of raw material that is rendered in the model.

The "Fat" and "Bone" references on the form relate to boning room fat and bone and therefore normally the addition of these two numbers should relate the boning room yield, ie if the boning room averages a yield of 70% yield then these two yields combined should equal 30%.

4.3.4 Rendering yields

The data on this page enables the calculation of yield from each species from the "Kill Data" page.

The yield for the beef kill may also be derived using the "Beef Yield Calculator"

	% Tallow Vield / Kg HDM	15. Heat Heal Yeld /Kg HDW
Def.	(A, 2)	86.13
Voaler	25-80	12.00
Calves	39.00	30.00
Storp	30.00	25.00
Laube	III 80	2.00
6045	8.80	8.40
Other	1.04	1.80

#### 4.3.5 Material shipped

This page allows for the actual amounts of product processed for the period under review to be entered. This allows the model to determine performance indicators to be determined for calculated outputs as well as actual outputs.

This provides a reference point to assess the accuracy of the yield data in the model and for it to be adjust as necessary to improve the accuracy of the model calculations.

aw Material In	put Data		
EData   Randoring	Ut Input   Abatto	e API Vields   Rendering Yeeks Platin	rul shipped
hipped adjusted i	or inventory chare	ge	
meeting.	10	Porma	
Taller		Term	
Roothed		Terres	
- 284	100	Terms	
		Beef Yelli OK	Cancel

#### 4.4 Beef yield calculator - 3

The "Beef Yield Calculator" forms may be accessed either directly from the front page of the model or from the "Define Raw Material Form".

The calculator consists of two pages to allow the calculation of material sent from the kill floor and the boning room of the meat processing plant.

#### 4.4.1 Beef kill and bone

The boning room page allows the input of boning numbers for six classes of cattle and is used to determine the likely yield of meat meal and tallow from the rendering operation. The default output of the model is based on data determined by CSIRO and published by MRC in 1992 (By- Products from Sheep And Cattle, W F Spooncer, Meat Research Report 2/92). The kill numbers and HDW data entered as boning data is also used by the model to determine the kill floor material sent to rendering using yield data from

the same MRC report.

It is also an option on this page to enter a kill for animals that are not processed through the boning room. Data from this entry is not included in the calculation for the fat and bone going to rendering but is included in calculating the kill floor raw material.

Selecting the "Calculate Plant Output" button will use the entered data to provide the output of tallow and meat meal from the entered data. The model uses both the boning room and kill floor data on the forms when calculating the output prediction.

It should be noted that this operation will overwrite previously entered data in the model. keel Yield Beef Kill & Bone | Kill Floor - MAM | riber of Cettle Arig HDN Arconstand Kg Talon vield % Calculate Plant 227 8.45 18.67 199680 Outputs 480 9.50 30.32 0 332 9.50 11.18 Load MLN Reld Defaults 218 18.13 3.81 0 282 9.72 34.09 380 9.66 13.76 me Grain: 0 4.45 5.65 Head Killed and NOT Boned Est Boning Yields % HDW AVENOW No of Cattle 186 15.32% 14.30% Ext Plant Yolds - % HDW Talks. Load Clats into Close / Carcal Drout Pe 15, 12% 14.10% Beef Kill Raw Haterial Vields MARK-56 HOW Pat-% HDNI Bone -% HDW 195,580 227.08 20.19% 7.22% 21,65%

After calculation the form will stay open for other operations. If it is considered that the output from the data does not represent the output of the plant, based on operating experience, then different yields may be entered and to achieve the desired result. The MRC data is stored in the model and may be re-entered at any time by using the "Load MLA Defaults" button.

#### 4.4.2 Kill floor raw material

This page allows the amount of products saved from the kill floor operations to be entered. The model works on the premise that any material not saved will be sent to rendering.

The material is calculated on the basis of the classes of cattle entered on the boning page and the hot dressed weight of those cattle. The raw material is calculated on the basis of cattle weight however it is not possible to save different offal products from different classes of cattle. For example, the input to the model will not allow tripe to be collected from domestic cattle and not Japanese Ox. Using the "Calculate Plant Output" button will calculate the plant outputs (including the boning room output) and display it on the page for reference.

of KILA Score Million	or - HW	1 P			
-	of Pro	duct	**	of Produ Saved	ĸt
Head	100	a, Tri	einen & tren 🗟	76	-
Cheeks 🖗	50	-	Heart 🗟	70	
Tongue (full) 🗵	50	-	Skart 🖓	100	13
Tonuos short cut	50		Soleen T	50	
Tongue roots	50	-16 Pat	inch (ideaii) 🗟	80	
Fore hocks	100		Stale & read	50	
Hind hocks	100		Intestnes 🗐	50	
Liver 🖓	80	**	Coul fat IT	50	
Lungs	50	% A	aireaut tree 🔽	50	
			Tails P	78	-
Tick bones for SAWED a remainder will be s rendering as Ma	ent to		2	alculate R Outputte	unt.
of Plant Vokis - % HDV Plant Youl Tak	-		these ( Factore -	Logd	lute r
24.38% 25.41%			And a second second	Dipl	C Pijel
teef Kill Have Haterial W	elds .				
Total No Failed Ave	HOW /	10055100	Fact-N-HOW	- Bone-Ni	HOW

#### 4.4.3 Main form

The percentage yields and outputs shown on the bottom of the page are the calculated outputs that will be entered that will be entered into the model when the "Load Data into Input Form" is selected. This data is updated each time a "Calculate Plant Outputs" button is selected. (Kill floor or boning room data).

Est Plant Yields -	% HDW			
Meat Meal	Tallow 21.41%		Close / Cancel	Load Data into Input Form
Beef Kill Raw Mat	erial Yields			
Total No Head	AVG HDW	MAM-% HDW	Fat-% HDW	Bone-% HDW
620	275.03	29.28%	17.10%	16.95%

If this button is not selected the output data will not be entered into the model.

The form will only close when the "Close/Cancel" button is selected. This will close the form – it will not enter data into the model.